
102 Butler Street  P.O. Box 86  Saugatuck, MI 49453 
Phone: 269-857-2603  Website: www.saugatuckcity.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 
November 17, 2016 City Hall 

102 Butler Street, Saugatuck, MI  
7:00 PM 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: 

2. Approval of Agenda: 

3. Approval of Minutes:   

4. Public Comment on Agenda Items: Limit 3 minutes  

5. New Business:  

a. Public hearing to Rezone three parcels on Water Street to Water Street South, eliminate Water 
Street zone district 

6. Old Business:   
a. Remove from table 500 Dunegrass Ridge Drive  
b. Public hearing on Accessory Dwelling unit size and measurement 

 
7. Communications: 

 
8. Reports of Officers and Committees:   

 
9. Public Comments:  Limit 3 minutes 

 
10. Adjournment  

 

*Public Hearing Procedure 

 
A. Hearing is called to order by the Chair 
B. Summary by the Zoning Administrator 
C. Presentation by the Applicant 
D. Public comment regarding the application 

1) Participants shall identify themselves by name and address 
2) Comments/Questions shall be addressed to the Chair 
3) Comments/Questions shall be limited to five minutes 

1. Supporting comments (audience and letters) 
2. Opposing comments (audience and letters) 
3. General comments (audience and letters) 
4. Repeat comment opportunity (Supporting, Opposing, General) 

E. Public comment portion closed by the Chair 
F. Commission deliberation 
G. Commission action   



PROPOSED Minutes 
Saugatuck Planning Commission Meeting 

Saugatuck, Michigan, October 20, 2016 
 

The Saugatuck Planning Commission met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, 102 Butler Street, 
Saugatuck, Michigan. 

 
1. Call to Order by Chairperson Muir at 7:00 p.m. 
 
  Attendance: 
  Present: Muir, Crawford, Hess, Fox & McPolin  
  Absent: Lewis & Schmidt 
  Others Present: City Manager Harrier 
 
2.  Approval of Agenda:  A motion was made by McPolin, 2nd by Fox, to approve the agenda as 
presented. Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  A motion was made by Crawford, 2nd by Hess, to approve the September 
15, 2016 regular meeting minutes as presented.  Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 
4.  Public Comments (agenda items only): None 
 
5.  Old Business: None 
 
6.  New Business: 
  A.  Public Hearing – 500 Dunegrass Ridge Drive: Planning Commission scheduled on this date 
a public hearing for a site plan review for a single family home and accessory structure with living space 
above the garage at 500 Dunegrass Circle in the critical dunes. 
 
Chairperson Muir opened the hearing at 7:04 p.m. 
 
Dave Barker, applicant, provided details of the project. 
 
There being no further comments the hearing was closed at 7:11 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by McPolin, 2nd by Hess, to table application for 500 Dunegrass Ridge Drive to the 
November 17, 2016 regular meeting.  Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 
  B.  Public Hearing – Accessory Dwelling Unit Text Amendment: Planning Commission 
scheduled on this date a public hearing to hear comments regarding text amendments made to Section 
154.005 Accessory Dwelling Units for lots over two (2) acres in size.  
 
Chairperson Muir opened the hearing at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Dave Barker, developer, clarified lot sizes in Dunegrass are over two (2) acres. 
 
There being no further comments the hearing was closed at 7:31 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by Fox, 2nd by McPolin, to table this item to the November 17, 2016 regular meeting.   
Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 



  C.  Public Hearing – Clubs and Lodges Permitted Uses in R-4 Text Amendment: Planning 
Commission scheduled on this date a public hearing to hear comments regarding the text amendments 
made to Sections 153.01, 154.005, 154.002(F) and 154.002(W) Club, Lodge, Charitable or Civic 
Organizations. 
 
Chairperson Muir opened the hearing at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Rob Boyce, resident, supports text amendments. 
 
There being no further comments the hearing was closed at 7:51 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by Crawford, 2nd by Fox, to approve text amendment to 153.01, 154.005, 154.002(F) 
and 154.002(W) Club, Lodge, Charitable or Civic Organizations with the following amendment made to 
Section 154.005, Chapter 154 of the Code of the City of Saugatuck, entitled “Definitions; Club, Lodge or 
Fraternity,” is amended to read as follows: “CLUB, LODGE, CHARITABLE OR CIVIC ORGANIZATION – 
An organization of persona for special purposes or for the promulgation of sports, arts, science, 
literature, politics or the like but not for profit, and without payment of dividends to members.  Activities 
associated with these entities include traditional civic activities such as but not limited to: meetings, 
community hall rental for private parties, fund raising sales, social events, educational activities, puppet 
shows and movies, veteran support, exhibitions, and other activities.  The sale or distribution of alcohol 
and/or gambling or playing at any game of chance for money or other stakes is permitted only with a 
properly issued state license(s).”  Upon voice vote the motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Yes: Crawford, Fox, McPolin, & Muir 
No: None 
Abstained: Hess 
 
D.  Public Hearing – Land Division and Lot Line Adjustment Text Amendment: Planning 
Commission scheduled on this date a public hearing to hear comments regarding text amendments to 
Section 154.022(F)(6)(a) Lot Division and 153.01 Division of Lots in Recorded Plats. 
 
Chairperson Muir opened the hearing at 8:15 p.m. 
 
There being no comments the hearing was closed at 8:16 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by McPolin, 2nd by Fox, to approve text amendments to Section 154.022(F)(6)(a) Lot 
Division and 153.01 Division of Lots in Recorded Plats with the following amendments made to Section 
154.022(F)(6)(a) to read as follows: “No lot or lots in common ownership, and no yard, court, parking 
area or other space, shall be divided, altered or reduced to make such area or dimension less than the 
minimum required by the zone district in which it is located.  No lot line adjustments shall be made which 
create or increase non-conformity with the minimum area or dimensions of the zone district in which it is 
located.”   Upon voice vote the motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Yes: Crawford, Fox, McPolin, & Muir 
No: None 
Abstained: Hess 
 



  E.  Public Hearing – Eliminating Fencing Requirements for Pools Text Amendment: 
Planning Commission scheduled on this date a public hearing to hear comments on text amendments to 
Section 154.022(T)(3) Private Swimming Pool Fencing. 
 
Chairperson Muir opened the hearing at 8:20 p.m. 
 
There being no comments the hearing was closed at 8:22 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by McPolin, 2nd by Fox, to approve text amendments to remove Section 
154.022(T)(3) as presented. Upon voice vote the motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Yes: Crawford, Fox, McPolin, & Muir 
No: None 
Abstained: Hess 
 
7.  Communications:  
  A.  Letter Regarding Event Venue in R-1 Zone District – 312 Hoffman Street: Accepted 
communication as information and showed no interest to pursue an ordinance amendment at this time. 
 
  B.  Letter Regarding Flood Plain Mapping Process: Accepted communication as information. 
 
  C.  Staff Report Requesting Rezoning and Elimination of C-2 Water Street District (3 
Parcels): No action taken, will discuss at the November 17, 2016 regular meeting. 
 
8.  Reports of Officers and Committees: None 
 
9.  Public Comments:  None 
 
10.  Adjournment: Chairperson Muir adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Monica Nagel, CMC 
City Clerk 
 



 

 

 

 

 To:  City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 

 From: Cindy Osman, Planning and Zoning  

 Date: October 20, 2016 

 Re: Rezoning 3 parcels and elimination of the C-2 Water Street commercial district 

 

One of the action items for 2015 that Michael left me was to eliminate excessive Zone Districts.  The 

Water Street zone district contains three parcels, and two of them are owned by the City.  The third 

parcel is owned by Ship ‘n Shore.  I recommend rezoning to Water Street South.  Both zone districts 

have similar permitted uses by right, and by special land uses.  The Water Street district is the only 

downtown commercial zone district that doesn’t have zero setbacks.   

Public Hearing on the following text amendments and rezoning:   

  

 



§ 154.038  C-2 WATER STREET COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (WS). 

   (A)   Generally. 

      (1)   This district will provide an area for waterfront retail and commercial land use. 

      (2)   The Water Street District will provide for a less intense commercial use than the City 

Center District and promote visual access to the Kalamazoo River. 

      (3)   The intent of the district is to coordinate the aspects of a Central Business District with 

that of waterfront property and blend commercial uses that compliment and enhance the 

waterfront. 

   (B)   Permitted uses: 

      (1)   Essential public services; 

      (2)   Retail stores; 

      (3)   Bed and breakfasts; 

      (4)   Domestic and business repairs; 

      (5)   Personal service establishments; 

      (6)   Art gallery; 

      (7)   Restaurants; 

      (8)   Business, professional office; 

      (9)   Apartments on second and third floors; 

      (10)   Home occupations; and 

      (11)   Short-term rental unit on second and third floors. 

   (C)   Special land uses. Special land uses are subject to review and approval by the Planning 

Commission in accordance with §§ 154.060 through 154.068 and §§ 154.080 through 154.092. 

      (1)   Community center; 

      (2)   Club and fraternal organizations; 

      (3)   Hotel/inns; 

      (4)   Amusement arcade; 

      (5)   Motion picture facilities; 

      (6)   Marina/commercial boats; 

      (7)   Recreational transportation rental facilities; and  

      (8)   Parking facilities. 

   (D)   Dimension and area regulations: 

  

Front setback 0 feet 

Side setback 0 feet* 

Rear setback 15 feet 

Minimum lot area 8,712 square feet 

Minimum lot width 66 feet 

Maximum lot coverage 85% 

* Subject to Fire Code Regulations 

  

(Ord. passed 6-24-1996; Am. Ord. 050711, passed - -; Am. Ord. 02-02, passed 2-11-2002; Am. 

Ord. 090824-1, passed 8-24-2009; Am. Ord. 101122-1, passed 11-22-2010; Am. Ord. 111212-1, 



passed 12-12-2011; Am. Ord. 140714-1, passed 7-14-2014; Am. Ord. 150427-1, passed 4-27-

2015) 
 

If you feel this rezoning and elimination of a zone district is appropriate, the following motion may be 

used: 

I move to approve/deny the rezoning of the property commonly known as 528 Water Street, and parcels 

53-300-070-00 and 53-300-071-00, whose legal descriptions are listed on exhibit A from C-2 Water 

Street Commercial District to C-2 Water Street South District and delete section 154.38 in its entirety.   

Exhibit A: 

528 Water Street - UNIT NO. 1THRU UNIT NO. 41 SHIP''N SHORE CONDOMINIUM SEC 9 T3N R16W 

(86)(2010) 

LOTS 69, 70, 71 & N 16 FT OF 221 KALAMAZOO PLAT, and, 

S 50 FT OF LOT 221 KALAMAZOO PLAT. 



 

 

102 Butler Street  P.O. Box 86  Saugatuck, MI 49453 
Phone: 269-857-2603  Website: www.saugatuckcity.com 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
 TO: Planning Commission 
  City of Saugatuck 
 
 FROM: Cindy Osman, Planning and Zoning  
   
 DATE: October 20, 2016  
 

 RE: Site plan review for new single family home at 500 Dunegrass Circle Drive 
 

 

Robert LeHocky has applied for Site plan review for a new single family home and accessory 

structure with living space above the garage at 500 Dunegrass Drive Circle in the critical dunes.  

This property is located in the CRC Zone District.  The purpose of this memo is to provide a 

review of the standards for this site plan review, and how the ordinance relates to this 

application. 

 

Background:  The City of Saugatuck requires a public hearing and site plan review by the 

Planning Commission for the new construction outside of the PUD in the Dunegrass 

development.   

Project Description:  The applicant proposes to construct a new single family dwelling unit and 

accessory building with living space above the garage.   

Standards for Approval: The standards of Section 154.064 will apply.  These standards are as 

follows:  

(A) All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation to 
topography, the size and type of lot, the character of adjoining property and the type and 
size of the buildings. The site will be so developed as not to impede the normal and orderly 
development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in this chapter. 

Comment:  This structure is planned below the high dune and not visible from other adjacent 
lots.  It will not impede surrounding properties in any way.  Planning Commission may find 
that this standard is met.  

Comment:  The accessory structure shown on the site plan does have living space above for a 
ADU.  It is approximately 1,000 square feet in area.  You may consider: 

1. Approve the project without the ADU 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
500 Dunegrass Circle Drive 
October 20, 2016  
Page 2 

 

2. Approve the project with living quarters in ADU limited to 600 square feet.   

3. Deny the project 

4. Table the application 

I recommend #2.   

(B) The landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by removing only 
those areas of vegetation or making those alterations to the topography which are 
reasonably necessary to develop the site in accordance with the requirements of this 
chapter. 

Comment:  Only those trees will be removed where grade changes have been permitted by 
DEQ.  No other trees will be removed.  Planning Commission may find that this standard is 
met.   

(C) The site plan shall provide reasonable visual and sound privacy for all dwelling units located 
therein. Fences, walks, barriers and landscaping shall be used, as appropriate, to accomplish 
these purposes. 

Comment:  The size of the parcel being over 2.9 acres with over 200 feet of lake front will offer 
privacy.  Other dwelling units will not be impacted in any way.  Planning Commission may 
find that this standard is met.   

(D)  All buildings or groups of buildings shall be arranged so as to permit necessary emergency 
vehicle access as required by the Fire Department. 

Comment:  Drives to be constructed per IFC 2012 requirements.  I have not yet recived the plan 
review letter from STFD yet.  Planning Commission may place this as a condition of 
permitting.  

(E) There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is separated from the vehicular 
circulation system. In order to ensure public safety, special pedestrian measures, such as 
crosswalks, crossing signals and other such facilities may be required in the vicinity of 
schools, playgrounds, local shopping areas and other uses which generate a considerable 
amount of pedestrian traffic. All federal, state and local barrier free requirements shall be 
met. 

Comment:  Limited traffic will occur because this is a residential home.  Pedestrian foot traffic 
will not become an issue.  Planning Commission may find that this standard is met.   

(F)  The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be 
connected to existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. 
Streets and drives which are part of an existing or planned street pattern serving adjacent 
development shall be of a width appropriate to the traffic volume they will carry and shall 
have a dedicated right-of-way equal to that specified in the city’s land use plan. 

Comment:  Planning Commission may find that this standard is met.   



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
500 Dunegrass Circle Drive 
October 20, 2016  
Page 3 

 

(G) All streets shall be developed in accordance with city specifications, unless developed as a 
private road. 

Comment: The residents may walk out the drive and through the common area to the public 
park area.  Planning Commission may find that this standard is met.   

 (H)  Appropriate measures shall be taken to ensure that removal of surface waters will not 
adversely affect neighboring properties or the public storm drainage system. Provisions shall 
be made to accommodate storm water, prevent erosion and the formation of dust. The use 
of detention/retention ponds may be required. Surface water on all paved areas shall be 
collected at intervals so that it will not obstruct the flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic, 
create puddles in paved areas or create erosion problems. 

Comment:   The site is entirely beach sand and drainage should not be an issue.  Storm water 
will sheet drain from the drives.  Planning Commission may find that this standard is met. 

(I) All loading and unloading areas and outside storage areas, including areas for the storage of 
trash, which face or are visible from residential districts or public thoroughfares, shall be 
screened by an opaque wall or landscaped screen not less than six feet in height. (See §§ 
154.142 through 154.144). 

Comment:  No such areas are proposed.  Planning Commission may find that this standard does 
not apply.   

(J)   Exterior lighting shall be arranged so that it is deflected away from adjacent properties and 
so that it does not impede the vision of traffic along adjacent streets. Flashing or 
intermittent lights shall not be permitted. 

Comment:   No such lighting is proposed.  Therefore planning commission may find that this 
standard is met.   

(K) In approving the site plan, the Planning Commission may recommend that a bond or other 
financial guarantee of ample sum be furnished by the developer to ensure compliance for 
such requirements as drives, walks, utilities, parking, landscaping and the like (see § 
154.173). 

Comment: Staff does not recommend a bond requirement for this project.   

Recommendation: Staff can recommend approval of the Site plan for a new single family home 
and accessory structure at 500 Dunegrass circle Drive. If the Planning Commission finds that the 
standards are met, the following motion may be used:  

I hereby move to (approve/deny) the application to construct a new single family dwelling at 
500 Dunegrass Circle Drive with the following conditions:   

All permits required by DEQ, Allegan County, and any other permitting agencies are obtained 
before a building permit is issued. 

The living area in the ADU is limited to 600 square feet.   

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Saugatuck,%20MI%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A1103$cid=michigan$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_154.142$3.0#JD_154.142
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Saugatuck,%20MI%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A1103$cid=michigan$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_154.144$3.0#JD_154.144
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Saugatuck,%20MI%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A1103$cid=michigan$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_154.173$3.0#JD_154.173


City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
500 Dunegrass Circle Drive 
October 20, 2016  
Page 4 

 

A tree inventory is submitted to the planning office. 

Plan review by the fire department is completed and approved before the building permit is 
issued.   

The above comments as discussed are to be incorporated into the record and are adopted as 
part of our findings of fact.   

 

 

 















 

 

 

 

 

 To:  City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 

 From: Cindy Osman, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

 Date: September 15, 2016 

 Re: Accessory dwelling units on large lots  

 

This memo is in response to your request provide flexibility for accessory dwelling units in lots 

over two acres in size, and to clarify how the floor area of an ADU is calculated.   

The floor area measurement is consistent with the definition of “dwelling unit” in the definition 

section of the zoning ordinance.   

(W)   Accessory dwelling unit.  An accessory dwelling unit, as defined in § 154.005 of this 

chapter shall meet the following criteria: 

 

(1)   Occupancy shall be limited to invited guests; 

(2)   Rental of an accessory dwelling, separate from a detached single-family dwelling, 

shall be prohibited without receiving special land use approval from the Planning Commission as 

authorized in § 154.092 (J); 

(3)   An accessory dwelling unit shall have a minimum of 375 square feet of gross floor 

area and shall not exceed the lesser of 30% of the gross floor area contained within the detached 

single-family dwelling unit or 600 square feet of gross floor area; except, as to the maximum 

floor area, when the parcel on which the accessory dwelling unit is located exceeds two acres in 

area and the floor area of an accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed the lesser of 30% of the 

gross floor area of the principal residence or 1,500 square feet.    For purposes of this section, 

the floor area of an accessory dwelling unit is the total finished floor area intended for 

living, sleeping, bathing, eating and cooking.   

(4)   An accessory dwelling, which is not located within the detached single-family 

residential dwelling, shall not be located between the front door of the detached single-family 

dwelling and the public right-of-way, unless located above an existing detached accessory 

structure; 



       (5)   An accessory dwelling shall be subject to all applicable setback and lot coverage 

requirements of a detached single-family dwelling in the district if which it is located; 

       (6)   An accessory dwelling unit shall only be permitted on a lot where the principle use is 

an existing detached single-family dwelling unit; 

       (7)   No more than one accessory dwelling unit is permitted on any lot; 

 (8)   Accessory dwellings shall not be permitted to have independent electric, gas, or 

water meters from the detached single-family dwelling unit; 

 (9)   An accessory dwelling unit located within a detached single-family dwelling unit 

shall have a separate entrance from the exterior of the structure and shall not have interior access 

to the detached single-family dwelling unit; 

 (10)   A lot with an accessory dwelling unit shall provide one additional parking space on 

a fully improved surface of concrete, asphalt, or brick, gravel, stone, or other surface approved 

by the city;  and 

 (11)   Accessory dwelling units may be included with the rental of a detached single-

family dwelling on the same property if it is done so under a single contract. 

 








	november 2106 packet
	november PC agenda
	October minutes
	528 water rezone
	500 dunegrass memo
	500 dg application materials
	Completed Site Plan Application 9-14-16
	JHC Living Trust East  West Elevations
	Site Plan Dunegrass Lot 8 (8.5 X 11)

	adu redline

	Temp01103
	Temp01100
	Temp01099

